
1 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

AGENDA 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Monday, December 17, 2018 - 6:00 PM 
 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Laney Harris 

Comments from the Mayor 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of Minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting December 4, 2018. (CCD) 

2. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract for the Millwood 

Water Treatment Plant - Settling Basin Interior Repairs/Liner Project. (TWU) 

3.  Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to enter into a renewal 

agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for services of two (2) officers assigned 

from the Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department for special patrols and enforcement 

operations on Housing Authority properties. (TAPD) 

REGULAR 

4. Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal approval of a private 

club application for Outlaws. (Jamie Reynolds) (CCD) 

This ordinance requires an emergency clause: An emergency clause requires a separate 

and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by 

the board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

5. Adopt a Resolution to recognize a citizen for their service to the City. (BOD) (This item 

added to the agenda at the request of Director Terri Peavy.) 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

6. Adopt a Resolution making appointments to various boards, commissions, and committees. 

[Advertising and Promotion Commission, Electric Board of Review, Heating and Air 

Conditioning Board of Review, and Historic District Commission] (CCD) 

7. Boards and Commissions Term List 

1



2 

ADJOURN 

2018 City Calendar 

4th Annual MLK Day Parade - Monday, January 21, 2019 

Run the Line Half Marathon - Sunday, February 17, 2019 

7th Annual Mardi Gras Parade - Saturday, March 2, 2019 

Warriors for Christ Crusade - Friday & Saturday, March 8-9, 2019 

9th Annual RailFest - Saturday, May 11, 2019 

Sparks in the Park - Saturday, June 29, 2019 

  

2



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of Minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting December 4, 

2018. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: 12/17/2018 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None needed. 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

FUNDING SOURCE: Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Clerk recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting Minutes 

 

3



1 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

MINUTES 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Tuesday, December 04, 2018 - 6:00 PM 
 

Mayor Ruth Penney Bell called the meeting to order. 

PRESENT: Mayor Bell, Ward 1 Director Linda Teeters, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Ward 3 Director Tim Johnson, Ward 4 Director Travis Odom, and Ward 6 Director Terri 

Peavy. 

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Attorney George M. Matteson, 

and City Clerk Heather Soyars. 

ABSENT: Assistant Mayor Ward 5 Barbara Miner and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Linda Teeters. 

*Director Harris arrived at 6:05 PM. 

Mayor Comments:  Mayor Bell said last night's Christmas Parade was the best parade ever.  

In the past few weeks she attended the Live United Bowl Banquet, the Arkansas Municipal 

League (AML) meeting in Hope, Arkansas, the grand opening of the Betty and Buddy 

Ledwell Workforce Training Center at Texarkana College, the grand opening of the train car 

restaurant the Flying Crow which was in conjunction with Scott Joplin's birthday, and the 

Joint City Chamber of Commerce meeting about the AR-TX Regional Economic 

Development Incorporation (REDI). 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards 

 Mayor Bell presented an award and pin to Rick Garner, CAD/GIS/Engineering Technician, 

who has been with the Public Works Department since 1986 and who is retiring from his 

position later this month.  Mayor Bell thanked Mr. Garner and all City employees for their 

service to the City. 

City Manager Kenny Haskin said Mr. Garner is the backbone of the City, an unsung hero 

and a champion for Texarkana. 

CONSENT 

2. Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting November 19, 2018. (CCD) 

4



2 

3. Resolution No. 2018-43 - appoints City staff to various boards, committees and 

commissions. [Public Facilities Board – City Manager Kenny Haskin, City Clerk Heather 

Soyars and City Planner Mary Beck; Electric Board of Review – Roger Douglas] (CCD) 

Motion to approve the consent agenda made by Director Johnson, Seconded by Director 

Odom. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

REGULAR 

4. Ordinance No. 20-2018 - rezones 4201 Sanderson Lane from R-2 Single-family to O-1 

Office Quiet Commercial. (Duong) (PWD-Planning). 

This ordinance requires an emergency clause: An emergency clause requires a separate 

and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by 

the board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

City Planner Mary Beck presented the item stating the request was for rezoning from R-2 

Single-family to O-1 Office Quite Commercial to operate a lab to fill orders for licensed 

dental professionals. 

Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Director Harris, 

Seconded by Director Peavy. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, Director Peavy. 

The ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Teeters, Seconded by Director Odom. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, Director Peavy. 

The ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to further suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Director Johnson, Seconded by Director Odom. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, Director Peavy. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Odom, Seconded by Director Teeters. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 6-0. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Teeters, Seconded by Director 

Odom. 

5



3 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 6-0. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

ReaDonna Jones, Study Director for the Texarkana Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

invited the Board to attend a meeting with the Linus Transportation Group to create the 25-year 

plan on December 12, 2018; and invited them to attend a workshop hosted by TXDOT to discuss 

traffic issues on December 13, 2018. 

Director Harris said the Citizen Communication portion of the meetings was no longer being 

shown on the government channel and the agenda and presentation process for Board members 

had changed.  He asked Mayor Bell if those ordinances would be reversed before she left office 

as Mayor. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session at 6:30 PM. 

*Director Harris left the Board Room at 6:30 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 6:43 PM. 

*Director Harris returned to the Board Room at 6:43 PM. 

5. Resolution No. 2018-44 – makes appointments to various boards, commissions and 

committees. (CCD)   

Motion to appoint Wade Williamson to the Electric Board of Review and Anderson Neal, 

Jr., to the Planning Commission made by Director Johnson, Seconded by Director Peavy. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Johnson, Director Odom, Director 

Peavy. 

Voting Present: Director Harris.   

The motion carried 5-1. 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn was made by Director Teeters, Seconded by Director Johnson.  Voting Aye: 

Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director Odom, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 6-0 

The meeting adjourned at 6:46 PM. 

APPROVAL of the minutes on this 17
th

 day of December, 2018. 

 

___________________________ 

Ruth Penney Bell, Mayor 

____________________________ 

6



4 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

7



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the Millwood Water Treatment Plant - Settling Basin Interior 

Repairs/Liner Project. (TWU) 

AGENDA DATE: 12/17/2018 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: JD Phillips, Executive Director 

REQUEST: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract for the 

Millwood WTP - Settling Basin Interior Repairs/Liner Project. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None needed. 

SUMMARY: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract for the 

Millwood WTP - Settling Basin Interior Repairs/Liner Project in an 

amount with the Arkansas portion not to exceed $110,545.79 and the 

total amount not to exceed $297,246.00.  Bids were received Tuesday, 

November 27, 2018 for the Millwood WTP – Settling Basin Interior 

Repairs/Liner Project (ATTH 01 Bid Summary).  Nine (9) contractors 

picked up bid packages for the project and three (3) contractors bid on 

the project. Bazan Painting Company of St. Louis, Missouri was the 

apparent low bidder with a low Deductive Alternate Bid “A” of 

$297,246.00 (ATTH 02 Bid Tabulation). This project consists of 

repairing areas of deteriorated concrete and cracks and installing a liner 

in the settling basin at our Millwood Water Treatment Plant located in 

Ashdown, Arkansas.  This project will repair the cracks and spalled areas 

in the basin and then install a liner in the troughs and walls of Basin #1 

at the Millwood WTP located in Ashdown, Arkansas. This project is 

budgeted in the Utility’s 2018-2019 Budget in the Millwood Water 

Treatment Plant Depreciation Fund at $275,000. The remaining 

$22,246.00 is available in the Millwood Water Treatment Plant 

Depreciation Fund with the appropriated portion for Arkansas not to 

exceed $8,273.29.   

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Utility staff recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Bid Summary 

 

8



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, upon advertisement for the Millwood Water Treatment Plant 

Settling Basin Interior Repairs/Liner Project, a low bid (after application of a deductive 

alternate) of $297,246.00, was submitted by Bazan Painting Company; and 

WHEREAS, $275,000.00, was budgeted for this project and the remainder of the 

project cost is available in the Millwood Water Treatment Plant Depreciation Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the Arkansas portion of the total project bid cost is $110,545.79, 

(which includes an appropriation of $8,273.29); and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager, Utility staff and City Staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract 

for the services and in the amounts set forth and the corresponding budgetary 

appropriation and expenditure approved.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17
th

 day of December, 2018.  

 

 

_____________________________ 

Ruth Penney Bell, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

 

9



 
ATTH 01 

 

Bid Summary 
 

MILLWOOD WTP 
SETTLING BASIN INTERIOR REPAIRS/LINER 

Project 61/62-000-135112-A/T131808 
 
 

2:00 P.M. Tuesday, November 27, 2018 
 
 

  Deductive Alt. Bid A 

 
1. Bazan Painting Company 

St. Louis, MO 

 

$297,246.00 

2. Thomas Industrial Coatings 
Pevely, MO 

 

$399,970.88 

3. Metalizing & Coatings of America 
Eldorado, Arkansas 

 

$410,712.70 

   
   
 Time First Bid Opened: 

 
Number of Bidders: 

 
Apparent Low Bidder:        

2:00 P.M. 
 

Three 
 
Bazan Painting Company 

 
 
 

 

10



Bid Tabulation
Millwood WTP

Settling Basin Interior Repairs/Liner
Project No. 61/62-000-135112-A/T131808

November 27, 2018 @ 2:00

ATTH 02

Item Quantity Unit Description Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
1 1 LS Mobilization, Bonds, and Submittals $40,215.00 $40,215.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $47,500.00 $47,500.00
2 10 SF Concrete Patch $225.00 $2,250.00 $500.00 $5,000.00 $20.00 $200.00
3 7,910 SF Coating/Liner on Settling Basin Walls $19.90 $157,409.00 $18.00 $142,380.00 $16.70 $132,097.00
4 1,807 SF Coating/Liner of Flocculator Basin Walls $19.90 $35,959.30 $18.00 $32,526.00 $16.70 $30,176.90
5 8,906 SF Coating/Liner on Settling Basin Floor $19.90 $177,229.40 $18.00 $160,308.00 $16.70 $148,730.20
6 1,848 SF Coating/Liner on Flocculator Basin Floor $19.90 $36,775.20 $18.00 $33,264.00 $16.70 $30,861.60
7 1,755 SF Coating/Liner on Trough #1 $19.90 $34,924.50 $18.00 $31,590.00 $16.70 $29,308.50
8 2,785 SF Coating/Liner on Trough #2 $19.90 $55,421.50 $18.00 $50,130.00 $16.70 $46,509.50
9 390 SF Coating/Liner on Trough #2 $19.90 $7,761.00 $18.00 $7,020.00 $16.70 $6,513.00

10 200 SF Coating/Liner on Trough #2 $19.90 $3,980.00 $18.00 $3,600.00 $16.70 $3,340.00

TOTAL BASE BID $551,924.90 $490,818.00 $475,236.70

Item Quantity Unit Description Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total

5 8,906 SF Coating/Liner on Settling Basin Floor $14.13 $125,841.78 $18.00 $160,308.00 $6.00 $53,436.00
6 1,848 SF Coating/Liner on Flocculator Basin Floor $14.13 $26,112.24 $18.00 $33,264.00 $6.00 $11,088.00

Sub-Total Deletions: $151,954.02 $193,572.00 $64,524.00

Total of Bid Using Deductive Alternate Bid A: $399,970.88 $297,246.00 $410,712.70

Note: Areas highlighted in yellow indicate an error in the bid.

BASE BID:
THOMAS INDUSTRIAL COATINGS BAZAN PAINTING CO.

St. Louis, MOPevely, MO

DEDUCTIVE ALTERNATE BID "A":

METALIZING & COATINGS OF AMERICA
Eldorado, ArK

METALIZING & COATINGS OF AMERICA
Eldorado, ArK

THOMAS INDUSTRIAL COATINGS BAZAN PAINTING CO.
Pevely, MO St. Louis, MO

11



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE:  Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to enter 

into a renewal agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for 

services of two (2) officers assigned from the Texarkana, Arkansas 

Police Department for special patrols and enforcement operations on 

Housing Authority properties. (TAPD) 

AGENDA DATE: 12/17/2018 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Arkansas Police Department 

PREPARED BY: Capt. Bobby Jordan 

REQUEST: Texarkana Housing Authority Contract FY2019 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: This purpose of this agenda item is to renew the FY2019 contract with 

the Texarkana Housing Authority (THA).  Under the terms of the 

contract, the Texarkana Arkansas Police Department (TAPD) assigns 

two officers to conduct special patrols and enforcement operations on the 

properties administered by THA.  In return for these services, THA pays 

the City of Texarkana, Arkansas $130,000.00 for salary/fringe purposes.  

The Police Department recommends approval of this 1-year grant.  

Failure to renew would require the City to pay for the salary/fringe 

benefits for two officers out of our General Fund or layoff of two 

officers. 

 

This is a long running grant between the City and THA and benefits the 

residents of the Housing Authority with additional police protection at 

no cost to the City. 

 

There are two file copies that require signatures from the City Manager, 

City Clerk, City Attorney and the Police Chief. 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Staff recommends this be placed on the consent agenda and approved by 

the Board of Directors. 

EXHIBITS: Texarkana Arkansas Housing Authority Contract  

 

12



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

WHEREAS, the City contracts annually with Texarkana Housing Authority for 

the services of two (2) officers assigned from the Texarkana, Arkansas Police 

Department for special patrols and enforcement operations on Housing Authority 

properties; and 

WHEREAS, Texarkana Housing Authority desires to renew the contract for 

these services and has provided a proposed contract to the City which provides for 

Texarkana Housing Authority to fund salaries in the amount of $130,000.00 for the 

officers; and 

WHEREAS, the City staff recommends approval of the contract;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager and other City staff, as required, are 

each authorized and directed to execute the contract proposed by Texarkana Housing 

Authority for the services of two (2) police officers at Texarkana Housing Authority.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17
th

 day of December, 2018. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Ruth Penney Bell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal 

approval of a private club application for Outlaws. (Jamie Reynolds) 

(CCD) 

This ordinance requires an emergency clause: An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: 12/17/2018 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Private club license. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: An emergency clause is requested to continue the application process 

through the State. 

SUMMARY: SB 623 application for permit to operate as a private club may be made 

to the municipality in which the private club seeks to be located, instead 

of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.  Outlaws located at 6115 E. 

9
th

 Street, is requesting prerequisite approval. 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and Staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance and applications. 

 

26



ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING THE REQUEST FOR 

PREREQUISITE MUNICIPAL APPROVAL OF A 

PRIVATE CLUB APPLICATION BY JAMIE 

REYNOLDS, AS APPLICANT, ON BEHALF OF CLASS 

ACT, INC.; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, as permitted by an existing retain-on premises beer permit, Jamie Reynolds 

currently operates Jamie’s Bar and Grill in Miller County, Arkansas, but outside of the city limits; 

and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Reynolds has made application with Arkansas Alcoholic Beverage 

Commission (“ABC”) to effectuate the transfer of said permit to 6115 E 9
th
 Street, being within 

the City; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with such transfer an application will be made for operation of a 

private club; and   

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and Rules and 

Regulations adopted by the ABC in accordance therewith requiring prior municipal approval by 

ordinance as a prerequisite to submittal of certain applications to the ABC or its Director relating 

to private clubs, request has been made that this Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, approve the application of Jamie Reynolds as applicant for CLASS ACT, INC., for a 

private club at 6115 E. 9
th
 Street, Texarkana, Arkansas;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

Section 1.  The request of Jamie Reynolds, on behalf of CLASS ACT, INC., for prerequisite 

municipal approval of an application for a private club at 6115 E. 9
th
 Street as required by Ark. 

Code Ann. §3-9-222 and the Rules and Regulations of the ABC is hereby granted. 

Section 2.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a municipal endorsement of any 

business operation, nor a waiver of the application of any City ordinance or other local, state or 

federal law, rule or regulation, now or hereafter adopted. 

27



Section 3.  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health 

and safety, and in order to allow prompt allocation with ABC a separate and distinct vote 

having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and 

this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17
th

 day of December, 2018. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Ruth Penney Bell, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to recognize a citizen for their service to the City. 

(BOD) (This item added to the agenda at the request of Director Terri 

Peavy.) 

AGENDA DATE: December 17, 2018 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

PREPARED BY: This item added to the agenda at the request of Director Terri Peavy. 

REQUEST: This item added to the agenda at the request of Director Terri Peavy. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None needed 

SUMMARY: This item added to the agenda at the request of Director Terri Peavy. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

This item added to the agenda at the request of Director Terri Peavy. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

 WHEREAS, Ruth Penney Bell has faithfully served the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, for many 

years on the Board of Directors; and 

 WHEREAS, Ruth Penny Bell was elected Ward 1 Director in 2008, and Mayor in 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, Ruth Penney Bell has resigned her position as Mayor with her last day of office 

being December 31, 2018; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, that this Board expresses its sincere appreciation and gratitude to Ruth Penney Bell for her 

many years of service to the City and declares December 17, 2018 as Mayor Ruth Penney Bell Day. 

35



 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17
th

 day of December, 2018. 

   

  

  

_____________________________ 

Barbara S. Miner, Assistant Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

  

APPROVED: 

  
  

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

36



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution making appointments to various boards, 

commissions, and committees. [Advertising and Promotion Commission, 

Electric Board of Review, Heating and Air Conditioning Board of 

Review, and Historic District Commission] (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: 12/17/2018 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Make appointments to various boards, commissions and committees. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None needed 

SUMMARY: Make appointments to various boards, commissions and committees. 

FUNDING SOURCE: Not applicable 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Boards and Commissions Vacancy List, Member Lists, and 

applications. 

 

 

37



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on various boards and commissions; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that appointments be made to fill the vacant positions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, that the following appointments are hereby approved: 

Board or Commission: Appointee: Term: 

__________________________ _________________________ ______________________ 

__________________________ _________________________ ______________________ 

__________________________ _________________________ ______________________ 

__________________________ _________________________ ______________________ 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17
th

 day of December, 2018. 

   

  

  

_____________________________ 

Ruth Penney Bell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

  

APPROVED: 

  
  

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

  

38



 

Board or 

Commission 

Vacancy Applicant Notes 

    

Advertising & Promotion 

Commission 

3 Positions Waiting on A&P 

Commission 

recommendations 

2-Vacancy 

1 – Expired Term 

    

    

Electric Board of Review 1 Positions No applicant 

 

Replace Buddy Shepard (SWEPCO) 

    

    

Heating & Air Conditioning 

Board of Review 

1 Position Antonio Telles 

 

Vacancy 

    

    

Historic District Commission 1 Position 

 

No applicant 

 

Vacancy 

 

    

    

    

    

 

39



40



Electric Board of Review 

 
Authorized by Texarkana, Arkansas Code Sec.7-133 

2 Year Terms 

 

 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 

     

SWEPCO Representative 

 

 03/06/2016----2018  N/A 

Thomas Thornsberry  

Electrical Contractor 

352 Meadowridge Circle 

870-772-9085 

903-748-4886 

Resolution No. 2017-17 

Reappointment 

04/03/2017 

03/06/2017----2019 2 3 

     

Director Travis Odom 

City Hall 

Resolution No. 2018-21 

Reappointment  

05/21/2018 

03/06/2019 

*Note: only a 1-year 

term 

 

3 4 

Wade Williamson 

36 Meadows Road 

870-773-0033 

Resolution No. 2018-44 

12/04/2018 

For Roger Douglas 

unexpired term 

03/06/2018-----2020 

1 N/A 

     

Roger Douglas 

City Hall 

Resolution No. 2018-44 

12/4/2018 

Term of 

Employment 

Former member of 

committee at large 

N/A N/A 

 

41



HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING BOARD OF REVIEW 
 

Authorized by Texarkana Code 7-124----126 

3 – YEAR TERMS 

 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 

     

Jeff Castle 

2700 East 39th Street 

Texarkana, AR  71854 

870-774-2077 (home) 

903-824-5555 (work) 

Resolution No. 2017-10 

Reappointment 

02/06/2017 

11/21/2016----2019 9 5 

     

Thomas Bui 

3028 E. 9th Street 

Texarkana, AR  71854 

870-773-1958 (home) 

870-773-8193 (work) 

Resolution No. 2017-17 

Reappointment 

04/03/2017 

11/21/2016----2019 5 3 

     

VACANCY 

 

 11/21/2016----2019   

     

Charlie Cook 

6 Lauren Drive 

Texarkana, AR  71854 

870-772-5137 (home) 

Resolution No. 2018-4 

Reappointment  

01/18/2018 

11/21/2017----2020 7 6 

     

Jory Moore 

Plumbing Inspector 

City Hall 

870-779-4980 

Resolution No. 2018-29 

08/06/2018 

Term of 

Employment 

N/A N/A 

     
*Texarkana, AR Code of Ordinances Sec 7-124 Mechanical heating and air conditioning contractor  

42



HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 
 

Authorized by A.C.A. 14-172-201----212, and Texarkana Code 19-31----65 
3 – YEAR TERMS 

 
 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 
     
Vacancy – Wendell Warner 
 

 2018--- 1 3 

     
David Jones 
39 Brookside Dr. 
903-277-5550 (home) 
870-774-3333 (work) 

Resolution No. 2016-34 
Reappointment 

04/18/2016 

01/17/2016----2019 2 1 

     
Al Davis 
35 Preston Heights Circle 
870-773-5308 (home) 
903-793-5595 (work) 

Resolution No. 2016-34 
Reappointment 

04/18/2016 

01/17/2016----2019 3 3 

     
Beverly J. Rowe, Ph.D. 
120 Olive St 
P.O Box 1815 
903-748-1235 (home) 
903-838-4541x3378 (work) 

Resolution No. 2017-10 
Reappointment 

02/06/2017 

01/17/2017----2020 4 2 

     
Doris Davis 
2102 Laurel St. 
870-772-2524 
90-280-1571 

Resolution No. 2017-10 
Reappointment 

02/06/2017 

01/17/2017----2020 2 4 

     
James Gibbs 
1321 Pecan St. 
903-244-8840 
Jkgibbs1321@yahoo.com 

Resolution No. 2018-4 
Reappointment 

01/18/2018 

01/17/2018----2021 
 

2 3 

     
Danny R. Gordon 
804 East 12th St. 
870-773-2746 (home) 

Resolution No. 2018-4 
Appointment 
01/18/2018 

01/17/2018----2021 2 3 

     
Mary Beck 
City Planner 
HDC Ex-Officio 
870-779-4971 (work) 

 Term of 
Employment 

  

 

43



 

 

 

TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 

Year 
Board or 

Commission Member 
Date Term 

Expires 
Terms 
Served 

2016 Heating and Air 

Conditioning Board 

3-Year Term 

Vacancy November 21  

     

2017 Advertising & 

Promotion Commission 

4-Year Term 

Vacancy March 21  

     

2018 Historic District 

Commission 

3-Year Term 

Vacancy – Wendell 

Warner 

January 17 

 

1 

 

     

 Advertising & 

Promotion Commission 

4-Year Term 

Brandon Cogburn –   

At Large 

Vacancy – Claude L. 

Moore 

March 21 

 

March 21 

1 

 

2 

     

 Housing Authority 

5-Year Term 

Kecia Wolf 

 

November 29 1 

     

2019 Personnel Policy 

Committee 

2-Year Term 

Eric Ethridge 

Marian Holder 

Linda Matthews 

January 6 

January 6 

January 6 

2 

3 

1 

     

 Library Board 

6-Year Term 

Linda Register January 15 1 

 Historic District 

Commission 

3-Year Term 

David Jones 

Al Davis 

January 17 

January 17 

2 

3 

44



     

2019 Board of Adjustment 

3-Year Term 

Ricky Pondexter 

Ray Cox 

February 17 

February 17 

2 

1 

     

 Electric Board of Review 

2-Year Term 

Thomas Thornsberry 

Director Travis Odom 

March 6 

March 6 

2 

3 

     

 Advertising & 

Promotion Commission 

4-Year Term 

Sandy Varner 

 

Joyce Dennington 

March 21 

 

March 21 

1 

 

2 

     

 Civil Service Commission 

6-Year Term 

Beverly Jack Webb 

Josclyn Jones Wiley 

April 00 

April 00 

1 

1 

     

 Planning Commission 

3-Year Term 

Randall R. Hickerson 

Anderson Neal, Jr. 

May 6 

May 6 

2 

2 

     

 Airport Authority 

3-Year Term 

Adger Smith May 14 1 

     

 Heating & Air 

3-Year Term 

Jeff Castle 

Thomas Bui 

November 21 

November 21 

9 

5 

     

 Plumbing Board of 

Review 

3-Year Term 

Jackie Kirkland, Sr. 

Robert Johnson 

Cliff Roberts 

November 21 

November 21 

November 21 

6 

4 

2 

     

 Housing Authority 

5-Year Term 

Jeff Harrelson  

 

November 29 

 

4 

 

     

 Public Facilities Board 

3-Year Term 

Melissa Edwards 

Tracie Lee 

November 30 

November 30 

1 

1 

     

2020 Personnel Policy 

Committee 

2-Year Term 

Dara Cornett 

Tracie Lee 

Jenny Narens 

January 6 

January 6  

January 6 

3 

3 

2 

     

 Library Board 

6-Year Term 

Junie Young 

Gary Nutter 

January 15 

January 15 

1 

1 

 Historic District 

Commission 

3-Year Term 

Beverly J. Rowe 

Doris Davis 

January 17 

January 17 

4 

2 

45



     

2020 Board of Adjustment 

3-Year Term 

Clyde “Boots” Thomas February 17 3 

     

 Electric Board of Review 

2-Year Term 

Wade Williamson 

 

March 6 

 

8 

     

 Planning Commission 

3-Year Term 

Clyde “Boots” Thomas 

Bertha Dunn 

Adger Smith  

May 6 

May 6 

May 6 

5 

3 

2 

     

 Airport Authority 

3-Year Term 

Holmes Morel 

Don Ruggles  

May 14 

May 14 

2 

3 

     

 Equalization Board 

3-Year Term 

Richard Henry June 5 4 

     

 Heating & Air 

Conditioning Board 

3-Year Term 

Charlie Cook November 21 7 

     

 Housing Authority 

5-Year Term 

Ross Morgan November 29 1 

     

2021 Historic District 

Commission 

3-Year Term 

James Gibbs 

Danny R. Gordon 

January 17 

January 17 

2 

2 

 

     

 Housing Authority 

5-Year Term 

John C. Hoy January 29 2 

     

 Board of Adjustment 

3-Year Term 

Bonnie Auck 

I. Don Nelson 

February 17 

February 17 

5 

7 

     

 Civil Service Commission 

6-Year Term 

Pete Cheatham April 00 1 

     

 Planning Commission 

3-Year Term 

George Coker 

Jason Dupree 

May 6 

May 6 

5 

4 

 Airport Authority 

3-Year Term 

Ray Abernathy May 14 1 

 Public Facilities Board Mary Beck November 30 1 

46



3-Year Term Dr. Kenny Haskin 

Heather Soyars 

November 30 

November 30 

1 

2 

     

2022 Housing Authority 

5-Year Term 

Ted C. Capeheart 

(Judge) 

November 29  5 

     

2023 Library Board 

6 Year Term 

Linda Cogbill 

Sarah Meredith 

January 15 

January 15 

1 

2 

     

 Civil Service Commission 

6-Year Term 

Glen Greenwell 

Matt Keil 

April 00 

April 00 

1 

2 

     

     

     

     

 

47


	Top
	1. December 4, 2018 Meeting Minutes
	12172018_ccd_minutes.docx
	12042018_minutes.docx

	2. Millwood WTP - Settling Basin Repairs
	12172018_twu_millwood basin repairs.docx
	Millwood WTP Settling Basin Interior Repairs Liner Project.docx
	twu-12172018 ATTH 01 Bid Summary.doc
	twu-12172018 ATTH 02 Bid Tab.pdf

	3. TAPD Housing Authority contract
	12172018_tapd_thand.docx
	Texarkana Housing Authority Contract FY 2019.docx
	12172018_tapd_thand contract.pdf

	4. Private Club License - J. Reynolds
	12172018_private club_jreynolds.docx
	Private Club License.doc
	12172018_private club_jreynolds app1.pdf

	5. Adopt a Resolution to recognize a citizen for their service to the City. (BOD) (This item added to the agenda at the request of Director Terri Peavy.)
	12172018_bod_honor.docx

	6. Boards and Commissions
	12172018_ccd_boards_commissions.docx
	12172018_ccd_AP.pdf
	12172018_EBR.pdf
	12172018_ccd_Heating and Air.pdf
	12172018_ccd_HDC.pdf

	7. Boards and Commissions Term List
	12172018_Boards and Commissions Term List.pdf

	Bottom

